
 

 

 
 

 

 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA PACKAGE 

 

Tuesday, July 18, 2017 



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY – JULY 18, 2017 - 1:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

Trustees: Ernest Carrera - Chairman;  Stephen Hill – Vice Chairman;  Alan Weiner - Trustee;  
Derwin Bright - Trustee;  Karl Craig - Trustee;  Steve Kenny - Trustee;  Sonya Little - 
Trustee 

 

Supporting Staff: Natasha Wiederholt, Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary;  Justin 
Vaske - Assistant City Attorney and Board Attorney;  Terrie Williams - Accounting 
Operations Manager;  Rosie Rivera – Accountant; Carleigh Blesing – Office Support 
Specialist III 

 

Consultants:  Jason Pulos and Nathan Burk- Asset Consulting Group (ACG);  Stephen Lambert 
Oswald and Bruce Crosswhite – AON Hewitt 

 
Location and Time: Fire & Police Pension Fund, 3001 N. Boulevard, Board Meeting Room, Tampa, 

Florida 33603, July 18, 2017, 1:00 p.m. 
 

Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Board of Trustees with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will 
need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to hire a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  In accordance with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special accommodations 
to participate in this meeting should contact the General Employees’ Retirement Fund at least 48 hours prior to the date of the 
meeting. 

 

Page Numbers 
I. Roll Call 

 
II. Public Comments -  Ten (10) Minutes Total – Three (3) Minutes per Speaker 

 
III. Approval of Minutes 

 Minutes for Regular Board Meeting on June 20, 2017 (Motion) ............................................. 4 - 13 
 

IV. Investment Policy Discussion............................................................................................. Handouts 
Jim Culbreth and Jessica West – Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP 

 

V. Staff Report 
1) Portfolio Performance Review – June 2017 – Jason Pulos, ACG ................................... Handout 
2) July 2017 Liquidity Needs (Motion) ................................................................................. 14 - 15 
3) Fee Analysis of Investment Management Accounts ........................................................ 16 - 31 
4) Semi-Annual Trading Evaluation Analysis & Review of Brokerage Transactions and  
       Associated Costs (Motion) ........................................................................................... Handouts 
 

 
 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 1 of 56



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY – JULY 18, 2017  

 

 
 

Page Numbers 
 

VI. Consent Agenda (Motion) 
 

Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments:  
Longevity Retirements, DROP Applications, DROP to Longevity, Deferred Retirements, 
Deferred to Longevity, Survivor Benefits, Estate Payments……….. ..................................... Handout 

 

Auto-Deducted: 
 

1) Long Wharf Capital – FREG III, L.P. – Q2 2017 - $1,308.54 ..................................................... 32 
2) Marathon-London Int’l. Fund – June 2017 - $21,991.00 ........................................................ 33 
 
Quarterly Invoices: 
1) Asset Consulting Group - #7929 – Q2 2017 - $31,250.00 ....................................................... 34 
2) LMCG Investments – Q2 2017 - $36,086.83............................................................................ 35 
3) Northern Trust Company - #01606816 – Q2 2017 - $35,023.02 ............................................ 36 

 
Miscellaneous Invoices: 

 
1) Alexander  Investigative Services, Inc. - #COT201711 – (Alvarez) - $30.50 ............................ 37 
2) Alexander Investigative Services, Inc. - #COT201713 – (Washington) - $77.00 ..................... 38 
3) Alexander Investigative Services, Inc. -  #COT201712 – (Woods) - $63.00 ............................. 39 
4) Ciox Health - #0217693084 – (Bryant) - $11.13 ...................................................................... 40 
5) Ford & Harrison - #694892 - $575.00 ...................................................................................... 41 
6) Ford & Harrison - #694893 - $34.38 ........................................................................................ 42 
7) Ford & Harrison - #694894 - $380.00 ...................................................................................... 43 
8) Ford & Harrison - #694895 - $75.00 ........................................................................................ 44 
9) Ford & Harrison - #694896 - $1,637.00 ................................................................................... 45 
10) N.C. Vital Records – (White) - $39.00 ...................................................................................... 46 
11) Saxon Gilmore & Carraway, P.A. - #54187-B - $122.50 .......................................................... 47 
12) Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP - #000636858 - $1,645.00 .................................................. 48 
13) Tampa Occupational Health – (Pugh) - $500.00 ..................................................................... 49 
14) Tampa Occupational Health – (Yulee) - $500.00 ..................................................................... 50 
15) Travel Reimbursement – 2017 FPPTA Conference (Bright) - $86.49 ...................................... 51 
16) Travel Reimbursement – 2017 FPPTA Conference (Carrera) - $105.86 .................................. 52 
17) Travel Reimbursement – 2017 FPPTA Conference (Craig) - $81.56 ........................................ 53 
18) Travel Reimbursement – 2017 FPPTA Conference (Hill) - $69.56 ........................................... 54 
19) Travel Reimbursement – 2017 FPPTA Conference (Vaske) - $676.86 .................................... 55 
20) Travel Reimbursement – 2017 FPPTA Conference (Wiederholt) - $103.82 ............................ 56 
 

VII. Adjournment 
 

Upcoming Meeting Schedule 
 

Tuesday, August 15, 2017 – 1:00 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting 
Fire & Police Pension Fund, 3001 N. Boulevard, Board Meeting Room, Tampa, FL  

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 2 of 56



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY – JULY 18, 2017  

 

 
 

 
Upcoming Topics for Regular August Board Meeting 

 

Actuarial Rate of Return Discussion 
Disability Retirement Hearing 

Forfeiture Hearing 
Monthly Investment Performance Report 

Liquidity Needs 
Biannual Pension Verification Questionnaire Audit 

 
 

Upcoming Retirement Conferences 
 

Public Funds Summit East 
July 24 – 26, 2017 

Newport Marriott, Newport, RI 
 

FPPTA Fall Trustee School 
October 8 – 11, 2017 

Tampa Marriott Waterside Hotel & Marina, Tampa, FL 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 3 of 56



   
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – JUNE 20, 2017 - 1:00 P.M. 
 

 
 

 

The Board of Trustees for the General Employees’ Retirement Fund convened in a regular session at 1:00 
p.m. on this 20th day of June, 2017 at the Fire & Police Pension Fund, 3001 N. Boulevard, Board Meeting  
Room, Tampa, Florida 33603.   
 

Support Staff:  Natasha Wiederholt, Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary; Justin Vaske, 
Assistant City Attorney and Board Attorney; Terrie Williams, Accounting Operations Manager; Anais 
Rodriguez – Accounting Technician I; and Carleigh Blesing, Office Support Specialist III. 
 

Consultants to Board: Jason Pulos and Nathan Burk - Asset Consulting Group (ACG); Stephen Lambert-
Oswald and Bruce Crosswhite – Aon Hewitt; Luis Santos, Ford & Harrison. 
 

I. ROLL CALL 

 
Mr. Carrera, Chairman, presiding, brought the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.   
 

Board Members Present Included:  Ernest Carrera, Chairman;  Stephen Hill, Vice Chairman;  Derwin 
Bright, Trustee;  Karl Craig, Trustee;  Steve Kenny, Trustee.   
 
Ms. Wiederholt advised the Board she received prior notification that Mr. Alan Weiner and Ms. Sonya 
Little would not be in attendance.  
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS- Ten (10) Minutes Total – Three (3) Minutes per Speaker 

 
None. 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Ms. Wiederholt requested the Board approve the minutes from the May 16, 2017 meeting.     
 

MOTION:  (Hill/Craig)  Motion was made by Stephen Hill to approve the minutes from the May 16, 
2017 Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Karl Craig.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

IV. Pension Forfeiture 

 
Beverly Harvin 

 
Ms. Wiederholt advised the Board that we have a pending forfeiture for Beverly Harvin and introduced 
Luis Santos, Ford & Harrison, to provide an overview on the case details and the Administrative Law 
Judge’s Recommended Order. The Board engaged in a discussion of the case and voted to support the 
Administrative Law Judge’s declination of Beverly Harvin’s pension forfeiture.  

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 4 of 56



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – JUNE 20, 2017 - 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

 
MOTION:  (Craig/Hill)  Motion was made by Karl Craig to support the declination of the forfeiture of 
Beverly Harvin’s pension.  Motion was seconded by Stephen Hill.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

V. Pension Administration System Project Update 

 
Ms. Wiederholt introduced Elena Morandi-Bonner, Principal Consultant with Linea Solutions and Russell 
Haupert, City of Tampa, Chief Technology Officer to provide an update on the Pension Administration 
System project.   Linea Solutions is a consulting firm with expertise in public sector defined benefit plans 
and was hired to assist with the procurement of a new solution including the development of up-to-date 
pension administration business requirements and recommendations for business process 
improvements.   
 
Ms. Morandi-Bonner provided an overview outlining the project background, scope and current status.  
She noted that the first two phases of the project – the operational needs assessment and the 
requirements gathering were complete and we are now entering the third phase – the procurement /RFP 
phase.  The fourth phase involves contracting with the selected vendor.   
 
Ms. Morandi-Bonner stressed the importance of selecting a system that could a) be functional for the 
next twenty-plus years, b) automate functionality to decrease the room for error due to manual entries, 
c) be utilized in tandem with the Fire & Police Pension Fund needs, and provided cost estimates for all 
components, after which discussion ensued regarding same.  
 
The project scope would include replacing the ISI-Pension Administration System, conducting data 
analysis and cleansing of member data and implementing a custom reports library and deploying an ad-
hoc reporting and query tool. 
 
The new system would offer the following new or enhanced functionalities: 

 Member Web Portal 

 Employer Portal 

 Document (or Electronic Content) Management (ECM) 

 Case Management 

 Workflow 
 
Ms. Wiederholt advised the Board that a joint workshop for the GE Retirement Fund and F&P Pension 
Funds is tentatively scheduled for August.  The workshop will be open to all Board members of both 
pension funds and is an opportunity to meet with the consultants and to learn more technical details 
about the project.  
 

 VI. Small Cap Equity Manager Presentations 

 
ClariVest 
Don Pepin, Director of Institutional Sales 
Matt Orton, Product Specialist 

  

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 5 of 56



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – JUNE 20, 2017 - 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

ClariVest is a majority employee-owned investment boutique founded in March of 2006, based in San 
Diego, California. Our six founding partners have been in the same room, focusing on the same 
investment philosophy, across a wide variety of geographies and market environments for almost 15 
years. We have managed a Small Cap Growth assignment on behalf of the City of Tampa since June 2007 
and greatly value our long-term relationship. 

 For the period ending 5/31/2017, the portfolio has outperformed the Russell 2000 Growth benchmark 
gross of fees YTD and over the past one, three, and five years. Our largest overweight is to the technology 
sector while our largest underweight is to healthcare, relative to the benchmark. 

 U.S. stock markets rallied in the fourth quarter of 2016 as investors reacted to the results of the 
presidential election. Smaller companies in particular benefitted from the prospect of tax reform, 
infrastructure investment, and tailwinds from a rapidly appreciating dollar. Optimism surrounding 
President Trump’s pro-growth agenda and signs of strength in the economy has helped to extend the 
post-election rally past the first quarter of 2017. However, small caps in general have lagged larger caps 
thus far this year. Small-cap leadership shifted from cyclical sectors levered to the Trump agenda – 
financials and industrials – to the more growth-oriented parts of the technology and health care sectors.  

 News flow from Washington D.C. has deflected attention from generally positive economic data and 
recent strong earnings growth. Going forward, strong fundamentals should provide a tailwind for equity 
markets and any progress toward regulatory reform could be a catalyst for further gains. Our overweight 
to technology, specifically semiconductors, has been a strong driver of performance given impressive 
earnings growth. Technology companies also fit from a risk perspective as they tend to react to company-
specific events and provide some added diversification to the portfolio. Uncertainty regarding the fate of 
the ACA proved challenging for healthcare companies, and we remain underweight given the lack of 
clarity going forward.  

 Overall, earnings growth and positive macroeconomic fundamentals should be supportive of the market. 
Any progress toward regulatory and tax reform will be beneficial to markets, though there is still the 
potential for volatility around political headlines. Our investment process is focused on building a 
diversified basket of underappreciated growth, and as such we remain grounded in the investment 
fundamentals that drive market returns over the longer term.  
 
LMCG 
R. Todd Vingers, CFA, Managing Director, Value Equities 
Jenna W. Oliver, Director, Client Service 
 
Mr. R. Todd Vingers and Ms. Jenna Oliver were introduced to the Board.  LMCG is a Boston-based 
investment management firm, founded in 2000, that offers a broad range of investment strategies to 
institutional clients including corporate and public pension plans, foundations, endowments, family 
offices, mutual funds and individuals. Our firm has been built by attracting talented investment teams 
that bring extensive experience and specific expertise in their respective market segments and 
investment strategies. We have managed a Small Cap Value assignment on behalf of the City of Tampa 
since June 2016. Since its inception on June 29, 2016 through May 31, 2017, the portfolio returned 
20.4%, versus the Russell 2000 Value Index return of 23.0%.   
 
Our portfolio lagged its benchmark for the period as a result of weaker stock selection and a difficult 
market environment for many active managers.  Our philosophy and process focus on quality companies, 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 6 of 56



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – JUNE 20, 2017 - 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

while the second half of 2016 was marked by a junkier, risk-on rally in the markets that created 
headwinds for our style.  Despite this more difficult period more recently, long-term returns for our 
strategy are still intact; since its inception on July 1, 2002, our strategy has returned an annualized 11.8%, 
versus 8.8% for our Index.   As we enter the third quarter of 2017, we are overweight Industrials and 
Consumer Staples while underweight Real Estate, Consumer Discretionary and Utilities.  We continue to 
find attractively valued investment opportunities with favorable risk/reward profiles.  While we don’t 
believe in making short term projections, we believe these investments will outperform the market 
longer term. 
 
We utilize a classic value-driven philosophy based on the belief that leading businesses selling at a 
discount to fair value have the potential to generate excess returns.  We focus on stocks that are 
temporarily out of favor in the market; specifically, companies with higher returns on capital, free cash 
flow and strong balance sheets. Emphasis is placed on those companies having the cash flow 
characteristics as well as the balance sheet strength necessary to buffer the company from any prolonged 
weakness.  While the companies examined are relatively small, they often dominate a particular industry 
niche and generally have significant barriers to entry.  As a result, they are able to perpetuate a higher 
return on capital over time. Our process utilizes fundamental bottom-up security selection, while risk 
control measures ensure security and sector diversification. 
  
Wellington 
Matthew McKenna, CAIA, Equity Portfolio Specialist 
James DiGiuseppe, CAIA, Account Manager 
 
Messrs. Matthew McKenna and James DiGiuseppe were introduced to the Board, and led with an 
acknowledgement of how long Wellington and the City of Tampa, General Employees’ Retirement Fund 
have been in partnership, and thanked the Board regarding same. Wellington gave an overview of their 
philosophy and practices, specifically noting that due to their being a private-single business, they are not 
beholden to a board or investors. Additionally, Wellington noted that their managers are all experts in 
their fields who have been with the company for several years gaining equity in the company, including 
individuals with PhD’s overseeing components in biotechnology.   
 
Regarding the City, it was noted that healthcare is performing well, and there have been small gains in 
biotechnology as well. Noting similarity with previous investment managers, Wellington has found that 
semi-conductors within technology are also performing well.  
 

VII. Staff Report 

 
1) Wellington Trust Company Regulatory Development 
 
The Board was provided with a letter dated May 17, 2017 notifying that the SEC will be opening an 
investigation into investment activities, primarily focused on private equity investments. It was noted 
that the Board does not hold these investment types. The Board was assured that Wellington is 
committed to full cooperation with the SEC regarding same. 
  
2) Resolution 2017-01 Wellington Small Cap 2000 Collective Fund Agreement 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 7 of 56



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – JUNE 20, 2017 - 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

Resolution 2017-01 was presented to the Board  to execute a pool exchange from the WTC-CIF Small Cap 
2000 (3699) to WTC-CIF II Small Cap 2000 (3X97) to allow greater liquidity needs for this investment.  
There are no changes to the management style, fees or terms of the agreement under the current 
investment. 
 
MOTION:  (Hill/Kenny)  Motion was made by Stephen Hill to pass Resolution No: 2017-01. Motion was 
seconded by Steve Kenny.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
3) Portfolio Performance Review – May 2017 – Jason Pulos, ACG 
 
ACG reviewed the monthly report for the period ending 05/31/2017. 
 
The one year return of the Total Fund as of 05/31/2017 was 14.14%, which was 1.97% above the return 
of the Policy Index. Contributions to relative outperformance came from both equity and fixed income 
for the one year period. The Large Cap U.S Equity composite was up 21.99% for the year, while Small Cap 
U.S. Equity was up 22.11% and Non-US Equity was up 19.45% for the one year ending 05/31/2017.  
 
As of May 31, 2017 the total fund value was at $697.8 million which was up approximately $6 million 
from the end of the prior month.  Through May 31, 2017 the fund is up 9.25% on a fiscal year to date 
basis which is 1.8% above the Policy Index for the same period.  Over the five year period ending May 31, 
2017 the Fund is up 10.19% annualized compared to the policy index of 9.59%.  
    
4) June 2017 Liquidity Needs 
5) Blackstone Capital Call - $20M – 06/28/2017 
  
A discussion ensued regarding liquidity needs for the month of June.  Ms. Wiederholt advised the Board 
that $6.2M was needed to fund benefit payments for the month.  Additionally, she updated the Board 
that a capital call was received from Blackstone Real Estate Fund in the amount of $20M due on June 28, 
2017. 
 
ACG recommended the liquidation of $3.6M from Waddell & Reed, $2.6M from LMCG and $1M from 
Dodge & Cox to provide liquidity needs for the month of June and to provide a $1M potential cash buffer 
needed to fund the $20M Blackstone capital call due on June 28, 2017.  It was also recommended that 
the CBRE Clarion Global REITs portfolio be fully liquidated prior to month end and the proceeds be used 
to fund the Blackstone Real Estate Fund capital call in the amount of $20M.  
 
MOTION:  (Hill/Bright)  Motion was made by Stephen Hill to approve the liquidation of $3.6M from 
Waddell & Reed, $2.6M from LMCG and $1M from Dodge & Cox to fund benefit payments for the 
month of June and provide a cash buffer for the $20M capital call for Blackstone.  Motion was 
seconded by Derwin Bright.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
MOTION:  (Craig/Hill) Motion was made by Karl Craig to liquidate the CBRE Clarion Global REITs 
portfolio to fund the $20M Blackstone capital call due on June 28, 2017.  Motion was seconded by 
Stephen Hill.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
6) Aberdeen Asset Management/Standard Life Merger  
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 8 of 56



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – JUNE 20, 2017 - 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

Ms. Wiederholt provided to the Board a copy of e-mail correspondence from Aberdeen Asset 
Management regarding the proposed merger with Standard Life which gave a broad overview of the 
integration of the two businesses.  
 
7) Cowen Acquisition of Convergex 
 
The Board was provided with a press release from Cowen regarding the acquisition of Convergex as of 
June 1, 2017.  
  
8) Fidelity Real Estate Growth Fund III Distribution  
 
Ms. Wiederholt updated the Board that we received a distribution from Long Wharf Capital, Fidelity Real 
Estate Growth Fund III on May 31, 2017 in the amount of $125,615.37.  Approximately $164K remains in 
the portfolio. 
 
 
 
9) Actuarial Valuation Rpt. - 01/01/2017 – Stephen Lambert-Oswald, AON-Hewitt  
 
Mr. Stephen Lambert-Oswald was introduced to the Board and provided an overview of the Actuarial 
Valuation Report as of 01/01/2017.  He reviewed the funded status comparing Entry Age Normal liability 
to both the Market Value and Actuarial Value of Assets: 
 

 01/01/2016 01/01/2017 

Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability $740,288,368 $751,364,846 

Market Value of Assets $657,493,326 $665,837,528 

     Funded Ratio 88.8% 88.6% 

Actuarial Value of Assets $680,403,789 $700,320,299 

     Funded Ratio 91.9% 93.2% 

 
Mr. Lambert-Oswald advised the Board that the required contribution increased from $18,520,923 to 
$20,190,042, i.e. an increase of $1,669,119.  These figures are net of Past Excess Contributions, i.e., 
contributions actually made for prior years above or below the required levels. 
 
 Plan Year Ended 

 09/30/2016 09/30/2017 09/30/2018 

    
State Minimum Required Contribution Paid Quarterly $13,254,983 $18,520,923 $20,190,042 
Percent of Participants’ Compensation 10.3% 13.6% 14.3% 
    
State Minimum Required Contribution Paid at 
Beginning of Year 

$12,754,619 $17,821,775 $19,427,886 

Percent of Participants’ Compensation 9.9% 13.0% 13.8% 
 
One component of change each year in the minimum required contribution is the reimbursement of plan 
expenses.  The actual expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016, were $4,107,109.  This becomes 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 9 of 56



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – JUNE 20, 2017 - 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

the estimated expense provision for fiscal year end 2018.  The make-up provision was an additional 
$554,109.  Thus the total provision for expenses is $4,661,218 which is more than the fiscal year end 
2017 expense.  The minimum required contribution also increased this year due to the change in past 
excess contribution. 
 
The investment return on Actuarial Value of Assets was 8.3% for the year ended December 31, 2016 – 
compared to the assumed rate of return of 8.0% annually.  The market value return was 6.8%.  
Investment experience compounded over the last 5 years has been approximately 9.0% per year.  
Compensation for continuing participants increased 3.7% on average- compared to the assumed graded 
salary increase that averages approximately 4.5% annually.  Compensation increases compounded over 
the last 5 years have been approximately 2.6% per year. 
 
The following table summarizes the factors which affected the valuation results, along with their 
approximate impact: 
 
 
   
 Impact on Present 

Value of Benefits or 
Actuarial Value of 

assets (000’s) 

Impact on 
Required 

Contribution 
(000’s) 

Expected Increase due to Expected Payroll increase N/A $495 
Investment Performance greater than Expected $2,157 (317) 
Compensation Increases less than Expected (1,921) (282) 
Change in Plan Expenses and Make-up N/A 789 
Change in Past Excess Contributions N/A 2,040 
Updating Assumptions 0 0 
All Other Experience (7,184) (1,056) 
  $1,669 
 
 
10) AON Transaction with Blackstone  
 
The Board received correspondence dated May 10, 2017 regarding Aon plc agreeing to sell substantially 
all of its U.S. based benefits administration and human resources outsourcing business, as well as its 
communications consulting practice, to a group of investors led by the Blackstone Group.  That 
transaction includes the sale of all of the outstanding ownership interests of Hewitt Associates LLC, the 
primary operating entity in that business, and several key subsidiaries.  The services performed by Aon 
Hewitt will remain contracted with Aon after the transaction.  
 
11) DROP Rate of Return for Period Oct. 1, 2016 – Mar. 31, 2017 – Option #1  
 
MOTION:  (Kenny/Hill) Motion was made by Steve Kenny to approve the DROP Option #1 Rate of 
Return of 5.43% (Period of 10/01/2016 – 03/31/2017); 10.86% (Annualized).  Motion was seconded by 
Stephen Hill.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
12) DROP Rate of Return for Period Oct. 1, 2016 – Mar. 31, 2017 – Option #2 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 10 of 56



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – JUNE 20, 2017 - 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

  
MOTION:  (Craig/Bright) Motion was made by Karl Craig to approve the DROP Option #2 Rate of Return 
of 0.48% (one year performance for the quarter ending 03/31/2017).  Motion was seconded by Derwin 
Bright.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
13) Northern Trust Government Short-Term Investment Fund - Daily Rate of Return – June 1, 2017 
  
MOTION:  (Craig/Hill) Motion was made by Karl Craig to approve the Northern Trust Government 
Short-Term Investment Fund – Daily Rate of Return of 0.0019% as of 06/01/2017.  Motion seconded by 
Stephen Hill.  MOTION CARRIED. 
  
14) List of Upcoming Seminars/Conferences  
 

Ms. Wiederholt provided to the Board a list of upcoming retirement conferences, specifically the Florida 
Public Pension Trustees Association (FPPTA) 33rd Annual Conference in Orlando, Florida from June 25th-
June 28th, the Public Funds Summit East in Newport, Rhode Island from July 24th-July 26th, and the FPPTA 
Fall Trustees School in Tampa, Florida from October 8th-October 11th.  It was noted that all members in 
attendance this date will be attending the FPPTA annual conference in Orlando the upcoming week.  
 

MOTION:  (Kenny/Craig)  Motion was made by Steve Kenny to approve the list of upcoming retirement 
conferences for Board attendance.  Motion was seconded by Karl Craig.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
15) Overpayment – Queen McClary  
 
Ms. Wiederholt brought out for review the letter and supporting documentation regarding Ms. Queen 
McClary’s request for a hold on collection of her overpayment until the end of calendar year 2017 due to 
financial hardship, as she is currently paying down medical bills. 
 
MOTION:  (Kenny/Craig)  Motion was made by Steve Kenny to support putting a hold on the 
overpayment collection for Queen McClary until December 2017.  Motion was seconded by Karl Craig.  
MOTION CARRIED. 
  
16) Member Handbook  
 
Ms. Wiederholt provided the Board with copies of the recently produced Member Handbook and 
informed the Board that a pdf of the document was uploaded to the General Employees’ Retirement 
Fund website and hard copies were distributed to all active members of the General Employees’ 
Retirement Fund during the week of June 5th.  She advised the Board that the document included a 
section on pension forfeitures per the Board’s request for member education on the topic.  Mr. Craig 
praised the work done by Ms. Wiederholt in paring down the law into something easy to read and 
understand. 
 
17) Florida Commission on Ethics Statement of Financial Interests Form 1 (2016)  
 
Ms. Wiederholt reminded the Board of the need to submit the Florida Commission on Ethics Statement 
of Financial Interests Form 1 prior to the July 1st deadline so as to not incur any fees, noting these had 
been received for Messrs. Carrera and Craig.   

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 11 of 56



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – JUNE 20, 2017 - 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

 
18) Board Trustee Term Expirations  
 
Ms. Wiederholt reminded the Board that two Trustee term expirations are occurring this year: 
 

a) Alan Weiner (Mayoral Appointee) – 10/31/2017 
b) Steve Kenny (Elected Trustee) – 10/31/2017 

It was noted that the Mayor had been advised of Mr. Weiner’s term expiration and the General 
Employees’ Retirement Fund staff would be initiating the City-wide Trustee election for Mr. Kenny’s 
position.  

 

 

 

VIII. Consent Agenda (Motion) 

Ms. Wiederholt advised that the Consent Agenda has been reviewed and the items listed are true, 
correct, and have been found to be accurate.  Justin Vaske has also reviewed all the legal invoices.   

 

Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments:  

Longevity Retirements, DROP Applications, DROP to Longevity, Deferred Retirements, Deferred 
to Longevity, Survivor Benefits, Estate Payments 

Monthly Invoices: 

1) City of Tampa Reimbursement – May 2017- $31,626.50  
 
Auto-Deducted: 
 
1) Marathon-London Int’l. Fund – May 2017 - $22,113.00 
 
Miscellaneous Invoices: 
 

1) Allegra - #80960 - $3,533.69  
2) Buffalo Medical Center, Inc., Walwin D. Metzger, M.D. - (Bryant) - $56.75   
3) Division of Administrative Hearings - #004421A - $1,579.40  
4) Ford & Harrison - #690761 - $1,875.00  
5) Ford & Harrison - #690762 - $875.00  
6) Ford & Harrison - #690763 - $500.00  
7) Ford & Harrison - #690764 - $367.98  
8) Ford & Harrison - #690765 - $425.00  
9) Ford & Harrison - #690766 - $204.26  
10) HB Workman Design - #14-331 - $200.00  
11) Jorge L. Chaumont, M.D. – (Bryant) - $36.45  

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 12 of 56



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – JUNE 20, 2017 - 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

12) Praveen K. Rohatgi, M.D., P.A. – (Bryant) - $65.00  
13) Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP - $7,280.00  
14) Tampa Occupational Health – (White) - $800.00 

MOTION: (Hill/Kenny)  Motion was made by Stephen Hill to approve the Consent Agenda.   Motion 
was seconded by Steve Kenny.   MOTION CARRIED. 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, Chairman Ernest Carrera adjourned the meeting at 3:20 p.m. and 
advised the Board that the next meeting would be held on July 18, 2017 at the Fire & Police Pension 
Fund, 3001 N. Boulevard, Tampa, FL, Board Meeting Room.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD CHAIRMAN – Ernest P. Carrera 
 

 
 
  

GE PENSION PLAN SUPERVISOR – Natasha Wiederholt  
& RECORDING SECRETARY 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 13 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 14 of 56



City of Tampa General Employees' Retirement Fund

Preliminary as of July 11, 2017 Market Value

% of Total

Fund Target Value Target %

$ Value

Over/Under

Target

Proposed

Rebalance

(Cash Increase)

Rebalanced

Value

Rebalanced

Mix

Total Equity $440,881,178 63.34% $417,661,733 60.00% $23,219,445 ($2,900,000) $437,981,178 62.92%

Waddell & Reed $87,637,063 12.59% $87,012,861 12.50% $624,202 $87,637,063 12.59%

Dodge & Cox $87,607,138 12.59% $87,012,861 12.50% $594,278 $87,607,138 12.59%

U.S. Large Cap Equity Total $175,244,201 25.18% $174,025,722 25.00% $1,218,479 $175,244,201 25.18%

ClariVest $18,579,942 2.67% $17,402,572 2.50% $1,177,370 $18,579,942 2.67%

LMCG $16,974,462 2.44% $17,402,572 2.50% ($428,110) $16,974,462 2.44%

Wellington (closed)* $44,685,980 6.42% $34,805,144 5.00% $9,880,836 ($2,900,000) $41,785,980 6.00%

U.S. Small Cap Equity Total $80,240,384 11.53% $69,610,289 10.00% $10,630,096 ($2,900,000) $77,340,384 11.11%

Marathon-London Intl Fund* $75,375,388 10.83% $69,610,289 10.00% $5,765,100 $75,375,388 10.83%

Fisher $72,311,132 10.39% $69,610,289 10.00% $2,700,843 $72,311,132 10.39%

Aberdeen* $37,710,072 5.42% $34,805,144 5.00% $2,904,927 $37,710,072 5.42%

Non-U.S. Equity Total $185,396,592 26.63% $174,025,722 25.00% $11,370,870 $185,396,592 26.63%

Total Real Assets $61,331,455 8.81% $69,610,289 10.00% ($8,278,834) $61,331,455 8.81%

Fidelity Real Estate* $109,075 0.02% $0 0.00% $109,075 $109,075 0.02%

Blackstone Real Estate $20,000,000 2.87% $20,883,087 3.00% ($883,087) $20,000,000 2.87%

CBRE Clarion $30,645 0.00% $0 0.00% $30,645 $30,645 0.00%

UBS Trumbull** $41,191,735 5.92% $48,727,202 7.00% ($7,535,467) $41,191,735 5.92%

Total Fixed Income (including cash) $193,890,255 27.85% $208,830,866 30.00% ($14,940,611) $2,900,000 $196,790,255 28.27%

Taplin, Canida & Habacht $69,587,794 10.00% $69,610,289 10.00% ($22,494) $69,587,794 10.00%

Brandywine* $62,645,432 9.00% $69,610,289 10.00% ($6,964,857) $62,645,432 9.00%

SSgA* $60,313,954 8.66% $69,610,289 10.00% ($9,296,335) $60,313,954 8.66%

Fixed Income Total $192,547,180 27.66% $208,830,866 30.00% ($16,283,686) $192,547,180 27.66%

Cash and Equivalents $1,343,075 0.19% $0 0.00% $1,343,075 $2,900,000 $4,243,075 0.61%

Private Real Estate Residual Cash $0 0.00% $0 0.00% $0 $0 0.00%

City Contribution $0 0.00% $0 0.00% $0 $0 0.00%

Cash and Equivalents Total $1,343,075 0.19% $0 0.00% $1,343,075 $2,900,000 $4,243,075 0.61%

Total Portfolio $696,102,888 100.00% $696,102,888 100.00% $0 $0 $696,102,888 100.00%

*Market Value as of 06/30/2017

**Market Value as of 03/31/2017

© 2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 15 of 56



City of Tampa
General Employees’ Retirement Fund

Fee Review 

June 20, 2017

231 South Bemiston Avenue  ♦ 14th Floor  ♦ Saint Louis, Missouri 63105  ♦ www.acgnet.com  ♦ 314.862.4848

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 16 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 17 of 56



Executive Summary

©2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved

▪ ACG presented a fee analysis to the Board in November of 2012 and May of 2015.

− The November 2012 fee review reflected a 51.9 bps blended fee.
− The May 2015 fee review reflected a 49.5 bps blended fee.

▪ As of May 2017, the weighted average investment management fee for the total pension portfolio is approximately 47 basis points,
or 0.47%.

▪ Nine of the fund managers are within the least expensive quartile of their eVestment peer group. This means that their fees are less
than or equal to 75% of the managers within a comparable investment strategy, vehicle and market value.

▪ Two fund managers are between the 25th percentile and the 50th percentile in their eVestment peer group.

▪ Two fund managers are between the 50th percentile and the 75th percentile in their eVestment peer group.

▪ Fees paid to Northern Trust for custody services are 2.0 bps annually. This compares favorably to the mean fee paid of 4.2 bps to
custodians of public funds with assets between $501 million and $1 billion based on the 2015 Greenwich Associates U.S. Institutional
Investor Survey.

▪ Fees paid to Asset Consulting Group are $125,000 annually. This is a 21% discount to the mean fee paid of $157,000 to investment
consultants of public funds with assets between $501 million and $1 billion based on the 2015 Greenwich Associates U.S. Institutional
Investor Survey.

1
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 18 of 56



Investment Management Fee Structure

©2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved

Manager Asset Class City of Tampa Fee Schedule Blended Fee (bps)

Dodge & Cox Large Cap Value Equity
60 bps on the first $10M; 40 bps on the next $15M;                                                     
30 bps on the next $25M; 25 bps on the next $50M 33.0

Waddell & Reed Large Cap Growth Equity
50 bps on the first $50 million; 
40 bps on the next $50 million 45.7

Wellington Small Cap Core Equity 60 bps 60.0

Clarivest Small Cap Growth Equity 85 bps on the first $25M; 75 bps on the balance 85.0

LMCG Small Cap Value Equity 75 bps 75.0

Fisher International Equity
75 bps on the first $25 million; 65 bps on the next $25 million; 60 

bps on the next $50 million 66.8

Marathon-London International Equity 35 bps plus incentive fee 35.0

Aberdeen Emerging Markets Equity 95 bps on the first $50 million 95.0

Taplin, Canida & Habacht Core Fixed Income 25 bps on the first $25 million; 18 bps on the next $50 million 20.5

State Street Core Fixed Income 6 bps on the first $50 million; 5 bps on the next $50 million 5.8

Brandywine Global Fixed Income 45 bps on the first $50 million; 40 bps on the next $50 million 44.1

UBS Core Real Estate
95.5 bps on the first $10M; 82.5 bps on the next $15M; 80.5 bps on 

the next $25M; plus incentive fee 86.4

Clarion Global REIT 65 bps 100.0

2
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 19 of 56



Investment Management Blended Fee Schedule

©2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved

Manager Asset Class Market Value ($000s)1 Blended Fee (bps)2

Dodge & Cox Large Cap Value Equity $87,411 33.0

Waddell & Reed Large Cap Growth Equity $88,436 45.7

Wellington Small Cap Core Equity $43,563 60.0

Clarivest Small Cap Growth Equity $18,347 85.0

LMCG Small Cap Value Equity $19,716 75.0

Fisher International Equity $73,469 66.8

Marathon-London3 International Equity $72,915 35.0

Aberdeen Emerging Markets Equity $36,218 95.0

Taplin, Canida & Habacht Core Fixed Income $69,258 20.5

State Street Core Fixed Income $59,910 5.8

Brandywine Global Fixed Income $60,636 44.1

UBS3 Core Real Estate $41,192 86.4

Clarion Global REIT $19,384 65.0

City of Tampa Weighted Average Fee $690,455 47.4

Fees May Vary Based on Changes in Market Values or Investment Results.

1 Market Values as of April 30, 2017.  Excludes cash.
2 Blended Fees Based on Current Market Value and Sliding Scale; Figures are in Basis Points.
3 The blended fee for Marathon-London and UBS exclude the incentive fee 

3
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 20 of 56



Investment Management Blended Fee Schedule Analysis

©2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved

Manager Asset Class
Current 

Allocation1
City of Tampa 
Blended Fee2

Least Expensive 
Quartile Median

Most Expensive 
Quartile

Dodge & Cox Large Cap Value Equity 13% 33.0 45.0 51.0 58.0
Waddell & Reed Large Cap Growth Equity 13% 45.7 48.0 52.0 61.0

Wellington Small Cap Core Equity 6% 60.0 65.0 75.0 88.0
Clarivest Small Cap Growth Equity 3% 85.0 76.0 82.0 92.0

LMCG Small Cap Value Equity 3% 75.0 74.0 82.0 90.0
Fisher International Equity 11% 66.8 52.0 61.0 68.0

Marathon-London International Equity 11% 35.0 61.0 70.0 75.0
Aberdeen Emerging Markets Equity 5% 95.0 76.0 90.0 100.0

Taplin, Canida & Habacht Core Fixed Income 10% 20.5 23.0 26.0 28.0
State Street Core Fixed Income 9% 5.8 24.0 28.0 30.0
Brandywine Global Fixed Income 9% 44.1 33.0 45.0 55.0

UBS Core Real Estate 6% 86.4 95.0 100.0 110.0
Clarion REIT 3% 65.0 62.0 69.0 75.0

100% 47.4 50.7 3 57.9 3 65.0 3

Fees May Vary Based on Changes in Market Values or Investment Results.

1 Based on April 30, 2017 Market Values
2 Blended Fees Based on April 30, 2017 Market Value and Sliding Scale; Figures are in Basis Points.
3 W eighted average fee rate using the City of Tampa’s current allocation and asset class quartile fee rates per eVestment; figures are in basis points

4
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 21 of 56



Investment Management Fee Comparisons – Large Cap Equity

©2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved

 Separate  Account  Commingled Fund  Mutual Fund 
5th Percentile 30.0 27.0 38.0
Dodge & Cox 33.0

25th Percentile 46.0 45.0 63.0
Median 52.0 53.0 76.0

75th Percentile 59.0 65.0 90.0
95th Percentile 80.0 82.0 120.0

# of Observations 358 87 199

 Separate  Account  Commingled Fund  Mutual Fund 
5th Percentile 37.0 34.0 45.0

Waddell & Reed 45.7
25th Percentile 50.0 50.0 70.0

Median 54.0 55.0 79.0
75th Percentile 62.0 65.0 93.0
95th Percentile 91.0 97.0 134.0

# of Observations 279 65 175

Universe Name: eA US Large Cap Value Equity

Universe Name: eA US Large Cap Growth Equity
Mandate Size ($000s): $88,436

   Mandate Size ($000s): $87,411

5
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 22 of 56



Investment Management Fee Comparisons – Small Cap Equity

©2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved

 Separate  Account  Commingled Fund  Mutual Fund 
5th Percentile 44.0 39.0 66.0

Wellington 60.0
25th Percentile 74.0 70.0 86.0

Median 83.0 80.0 100.0
75th Percentile 91.0 93.0 108.0
95th Percentile 100.0 100.0 133.0

# of Observations 176 52 84

 Separate  Account  Commingled Fund  Mutual Fund 
5th Percentile 74.0 21.0 69.0

ClariVest 85.0
25th Percentile 88.0 75.0 90.0

Median 96.0 90.0 100.0
75th Percentile 100.0 100.0 116.0
95th Percentile 100.0 100.0 149.0

# of Observations 172 25 111

Universe Name: eA US Small Cap Core Equity

Universe Name: eA US Small Cap Growth Equity
Mandate Size ($000s): $18,347

Mandate Size ($000s): $43,563

6
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 23 of 56



Investment Management Fee Comparisons – Small Cap Equity (continued)

©2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved

 Separate  Account  Commingled Fund  Mutual Fund 
5th Percentile 66.0 54.0 76.0

LMCG 75.0
25th Percentile 85.0 80.0 93.0

Median 95.0 98.0 104.0
75th Percentile 100.0 100.0 115.0
95th Percentile 100.0 108.0 135.0

# of Observations 223 40 133

Universe Name: eA US Small Cap Value Equity
Mandate Size ($000s): $19,716

7
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 24 of 56



Investment Management Fee Comparisons – International Equity

©2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved

 Separate  Account  Commingled Fund  Mutual Fund 
Marathon-London 35.0

5th Percentile 45.0 43.0 42.0
25th Percentile 63.0 65.0 76.0

Median 71.0 73.0 97.0
75th Percentile 78.0 85.0 110.0
95th Percentile 100.0 100.0 135.0

# of Observations 122 57 51

 Separate  Account  Commingled Fund  Mutual Fund 
5th Percentile 35.0 46.0 45.0
25th Percentile 55.0 55.0 85.0

Median 63.0 64.0 93.0
Fisher 66.8

75th Percentile 70.0 70.0 106.0
95th Percentile 78.0 88.0 126.0

# of Observations 163 70 98

Universe Name: eA ACWI ex-US Core Equity

Mandate Size ($000s): $73,469

Mandate Size ($000s): $72,915

Universe Name: eA EAFE Large Cap Equity

8
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 25 of 56



Investment Management Fee Comparisons – International Equity (continued)

©2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved

 Separate  Account  Commingled Fund  Mutual Fund 
5th Percentile 55.0 58.0 62.0
25th Percentile 80.0 80.0 93.0

Median 90.0 92.0 115.0
Aberdeen 95.0

75th Percentile 100.0 100.0 129.0
95th Percentile 110.0 124.0 152.0

# of Observations 190 118 113

Mandate Size ($000s): $36,218
Universe Name: eA Emerging Mkts All Cap Equity

9
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 26 of 56



Investment Management Fee Comparisons – Fixed Income

©2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved

 Separate  Account  Commingled Fund  Mutual Fund 
5th Percentile 20.0 18.0 30.0

Taplin, Canida 20.5
25th Percentile 24.0 24.0 43.0

Median 27.0 28.0 48.0
75th Percentile 29.0 30.0 54.0
95th Percentile 34.0 44.0 73.0

# of Observations 222 43 67

 Separate  Account  Commingled Fund  Mutual Fund 
SSgA 5.8

5th Percentile 20.0 18.0 30.0
25th Percentile 24.0 24.0 43.0

Median 27.0 28.0 48.0
75th Percentile 29.0 30.0 54.0
95th Percentile 34.0 44.0 73.0

# of Observations 222 43 67

Mandate Size ($000s): $59,910

Mandate Size ($000s): $69,258
Universe Name: eA US Core Fixed Income

Universe Name: eA US Core Fixed Income

10
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 27 of 56



Investment Management Fee Comparisons – Fixed Income (continued)

©2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved

 Separate  Account  Commingled Fund  Mutual Fund 
5th Percentile 21.0 17.0 40.0
25th Percentile 34.0 36.0 55.0

Brandywine 44.1
Median 40.0 45.0 70.0

75th Percentile 50.0 57.0 83.0
95th Percentile 70.0 92.0 113.0

# of Observations 192 76 97

Mandate Size ($000s): $60,636
Universe Name: eA Global Fixed Income - Unhedged

11
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 28 of 56



Investment Management Fee Comparisons – Real Estate

©2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved

 Separate  Account  Commingled Fund  Mutual Fund 
5th Percentile 25.0 25.0 35.0
25th Percentile 62.0 69.0 94.0
CBRE Clarion 65.0

Median 75.0 75.0 100.0
75th Percentile 80.0 84.0 106.0
95th Percentile 97.0 99.0 156.0

# of Observations 54 24 36

Separate Account Commingled Fund Mutual Fund
5th Percentile NA 81.0 NA

UBS 86.4
25th Percentile NA 95.0 NA

Median NA 100.0 NA
75th Percentile NA 110.0 NA
95th Percentile NA 123.0 NA

# of Observations NA 24 NA

 Mandate Size ($000s): $35,401

Mandate Size ($000s): $19,384

Universe Name: NFI ODCE Index

Universe Name: eA Global REIT

12
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 29 of 56



Disclosures and Legal Notice

Introduction
This material is intended to inform you of services offered by Asset Consulting Group. (“ACG”). ACG is an investment advisor registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The information contained herein is given as of the date hereof and does not purport to give information as of any other date. The delivery at any time shall not, under any
circumstances, create any implication that there has been a change in the information set forth herein since the date hereof. The opinions, estimates, and investment strategies and
views expressed in this document constitute the judgment of our investment strategists, based on current market conditions and are subject to change without notice.

Manager information and third party data have been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but its accuracy cannot be guaranteed by ACG. There is no representation nor
warranty as to the current accuracy of, nor liability for, decisions based on such information.

This material is distributed with the understanding that it is not rendering accounting, legal or tax advice. Please consult your legal or tax advisor concerning such matters. No
assurance can be given that the investment objectives described herein will be achieved and investment results may vary substantially on a quarterly, annual or other periodic basis.
Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results.

Hypothetical Performance

Results and risks are based solely on the hypothetical examples cited; actual results and risks will vary depending on specific circumstances. You are urged to consider carefully
whether our services in general, as well as the specific strategies and investments discussed in this material, are suitable for your needs.

The investments discussed may fluctuate in price or value. You may get back less than you invested. Changes in rates of exchange may have an adverse effect on the value of
investments.

The information presented herein is presented solely to assist you in creating a portfolio structure and forming investment guidelines and sector allocations. Valuations are derived from
proprietary models based upon well-recognized financial principles and reasonable estimates about relevant future market conditions. Valuations based on other models or different
assumptions may yield different results.

Please be aware that there are inherent limitations to all financial models, including Monte Carlo Simulations. Models are a tool to analyze a range of possible outcomes and assist in
making educated asset allocation decisions. Models cannot predict the future or eliminate investment risk. The projections or other information generated by ACG regarding the
likelihood of various investment outcomes are hypothetical in nature, do not reflect actual investment results and are not guarantees of future results.

The material presented herein is intended among other things to show the potential impact of compounding returns, fees, and risk of your portfolio. It is not a projection of the future
value of your portfolio. Investments are subject to market conditions and could result in the loss of your entire portfolio. Potential return illustration is based on ACG’s capital market
assumptions for each asset class represented in the portfolios.

Any hypothetical performance results shown: (i) do not represent the results of actual investments but were achieved by retroactively applying a strategy designed with the benefit of
hindsight; and (ii) do not reflect material economic and market factors that might have had an impact on ACG decision-making in formulation of investment advice provided to
client’s in the past. There is no guarantee that an actual client portfolio will have the same return and risk profile as the simulated models.

The projections or other information generated by the Monte Carlo Simulation regarding the likelihood of various investment outcomes are hypothetical in nature, do not reflect actual
investment results and are not guarantees of future results. Models are a tool to analyze a range of possible outcomes and assist in making educated asset allocation decisions.
Models cannot predict the future or eliminate investment risk.

Past performance is not indicative of comparable future results. Past performance of indices of asset classes does not represent actual returns or volatility of actual accounts or
investment managers, and should not be viewed as indicative of future results. Given the inherent volatility of the securities markets, it should not be assumed that investors will
experience returns comparable to those shown here. Market and economic conditions may change in the future producing materially different results than those shown here.

The information presented herein is for informational purposes only and is not intended as an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to purchase shares or interests in any fund
discussed herein. Any such offer or solicitation, if made, would be solely by way of such fund’s confidential offering memorandum and only to persons whose eligibility to invest has
been determined. The offering documents for each fund contain important information concerning risks and other material aspects of such fund and must be read carefully before a
decision to invest is made. Without limiting the foregoing, there are certain risks inherent in an investment in any hedge fund, including limited liquidity, lack of control over individual
investments, dependence on key personnel and that fees and expenses offset trading profits. There are other risks related to how any particular fund operates, the leverage it employs
and the nature of its investments. Funds are also subject to the risks of any investment, involving general market conditions, market interruptions and other matters. Funds may engage
in complex tax structures and delay distributing important tax information. Investments in funds are by their nature speculative and involve a high degree of risk and performance can
be volatile. Speculative investment practices engaged in by certain funds may increase the risk of loss.

13
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 30 of 56



Disclosures and Legal Notice

Definition of Statistical Measures

The “10-Year Median Return” is the 50th percentile annualized compounded return over the model time horizon that would be achieved given GIA’s stated capital market
assumptions as of the date of this presentation for risk (standard deviation) and expected return. It is equal to the 50th percentile-probability ten-year annualized compounded return
from a Monte Carlo simulation.

The “Expected Return In Any One Year” is the mean value of the probability distribution of possible returns for the given asset class in any one year as defined by the stated capital
market assumptions for return and risk as of the date of this presentation.

The “5th Percentile Return” is the 5th percentile return in any one year over the simulation time period horizon that would be achieved given GIA’s stated capital market assumptions
as of the date of this presentation for risk and return.

The “Annualized Return” is the annualized gain or loss on an investment or portfolio, expressed as a percentage change over initial investment cost.

The “Average Return” is the arithmetic average of returns over a given period.

The “Compounded Return” or “Total Return” is the compounded rate of return over a given period (not annualized).

The “Compounded Annual Return” is the annualized return over a multi-year (compounded) period.

The “Standard Deviation” is a simple statistic that evaluates the variability of events around the average. Essentially, the standard deviation measures how far, on average, an event
may deviate from expectations.

The “Sharpe Ratio” is a commonly used statistic that measures the amount of return you are expected to earn for each unit of risk you accept. It is calculated as the ratio of the excess
return on an investment or portfolio (which is the return over the rate of return that could have been earned in a risk-free security, such as U.S. Treasury Bills), divided by the standard
deviation of that investment or portfolio.

The “Income Yield” reflects the average return expected from regular cash flows generated by an investment strategy as a percentage of the total investment. The source of income
may be coupon interest, equity dividends, or other income generating activities related to the underlying investment such as rental income on real estate.

“Correlation” is a measure of the strength of the relationship between two variables. It is expressed on a scale of -1.0 to 1.0. A correlation of 1.0 means that two variables exhibit
perfect positive correlation and a correlation of -1.0 means that two variables exhibit perfect negative correlation. A correlation of zero indicates that two variables exhibit no
relationship to each other.

“Probability” is the relative possibility that an event will occur, as expressed by the ratio of the number of event occurrences to the total number of possible occurrences.

© 2017 Asset Consulting Group. All Rights Reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored, or transmitted by any means without the express written consent of ACG.
All brands, company names, and product names are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective holder.

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 31 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 32 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 33 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 34 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 35 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 36 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 37 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 38 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 39 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 40 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 41 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 42 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 43 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 44 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 45 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 46 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 47 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 48 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 49 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 50 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 51 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 52 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 53 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 54 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 55 of 56



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - July 18, 2017 Page 56 of 56


	City of Tampa Fee Review June 2017.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15




